Asphalt, Bulk Products Q&A
Q:  So how do I figure out what products are available, what the price is and who the contractors are for my region?

A:  The CCI (Current Contract Information document) lists all of the categories on page 2.  Click the link for the category that you are looking for.  It will take you to the appropriate price page.  Listed in the category is each line item and below it lists the region and the contractor(s).  If there are multiple contractors listed you must contact contractor 1 first followed by the others in sequential order.  

Next, click on the link to the price page.  Be sure to maximize the spreadsheet so that you can see the tabs at the bottom of the page.  There is also a link on the price page that will take you back to the Category page.
There have been significant changes to the price structure of this contract:
Categories 1 through 5 have an escalator clause and are subject to automatic price adjustments up or down every two weeks based on a price indicator used by WSDOT that reflects prevailing market prices.  The contract lists a Base that does not change but the actual prices may be higher or lower than the Base.  For current pricing please contact the contractor.  OSP recommends that customers validate pricing using the escalator formula described in the CCI.
Categories 6 through 23 all have prices firm and fixed for at least six (6) months.

Q:  How do I figure out what region I am in?

A:  

	Region Name
	Counties within the Region

	Northwest
	Island, King, San Juan, Skagit, Snohomish and Whatcom

	North Central
	Chelan, Douglas, Ferry, Grant and Okanogan

	Olympic
	Clallam, Grays Harbor, Jefferson, Kitsap, Mason, Pierce and Thurston

	Southwest
	Clark, Cowlitz, Klickitat, Lewis, Pacific, Skamania and Wahkiakum.

	South Central
	Asotin, Benton, Columbia, Garfield, Franklin, Kittitas, Walla Walla and Yakima

	Eastern
	Adams, Lincoln, Pend Oreille, Spokane, Stevens and Whitman


Q:  So what if the lowest priced contractor doesn’t have what I need but the next lowest price contractor does?

A:  A provision was included in this contract to enable you to go to the next lowest price contractor.  Just add brief documentation to your purchase file why you selected the next lowest price for audit purposes.  Section 8, Evaluation and Award paragraph 8.3 Award in the Original Solicitation located on the portal page of this contract describes this provision.  Please be sure to read the paragraph on Order Placement Documenting for Audit Purposes.
Q:  So what if a contract item isn’t available in my region but there is a contractor offering product in an adjacent region?

A:  It’s all about the price and getting the job done on time so it’s your call.  The Direct Buy limit is now $3600.00.  You might consider contacting the adjacent contractor for pricing and also, you must solicit pricing locally if possible.  If the cost is over $3600.00 but under $50,200.00 and you are a state agency you must solicit competition through WEBS.  Please bear in mind that repetitive purchases for the same item totaling over the sealed bid amount may be considered as segmenting.  Refer to section 6.5 of the Purchasing Manual for details on segmenting: http://www.ga.wa.gov/PCA/manual.htm.
Q:  What if there is an item not listed on contract that we use a lot of?
A:  It depends on what “a lot of” means and if the item falls within the scope of the contract.  If usage is significant and through a survey of your requirements we find that other governmental entities have the same requirement, OSP will consider an item addition to the contract.
Q:  We’ve purchased Asphalt Emulsions from some of these contractors on prior state contracts and sometimes they gave us two invoices.  One arrived within a few days for the cost of product and the other came in several weeks later that listed freight and depending on the job maybe there would be charges for spreading emulsions, equipment and labor, standby time and perhaps demurrage if required.  We like one invoice instead of two so how many invoices will we get now?
A:  Under this contract you will receive one (1) invoice.
There has been a significant change to the price structure of this contract from pricing in prior state contracts for Asphalt, Bulk Products.  We recommend that you review CCI to gain an understanding of how the pricing works.
Categories 1 through 5 are subject to automatic price adjustments up or down every two weeks based on a price indicator used by WSDOT that reflects prevailing market prices.

Categories 6 through 23 all have prices firm and fixed for at least six (6) months.
Q:  Do we have to use this contract or is it Convenience?  We think we can do better locally from non-contract vendors.
A:  The designation of Convenience and Mandatory for new state contracts is obsolete and no longer recognized.  A state contract is a state contract for state agencies and must be utilized unless the provisions of “Best Buy” are exercised.  If you can get a better deal locally for the exact item specified on the contract you may make the purchase but you are required by law to tell us about it through the Best Buy program.  Please see section 6.11 of the Purchasing Manual http://www.ga.wa.gov/PCA/manual.htm or, refer to the second proviso in the attached link: http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=43.19.190.
Aside from the rules you should ask your local non-contract vendors why they didn’t bid on this contract.  Don’t accept the excuse that they didn’t know about the bid, they didn’t have the time to bid, they were on vacation or that they already have too much business to be state contract holder.  Try to find out what the real reason is.  After all, they’re already conducting state business in your region.
Q:  So how do we get our local vendors on the contract?

A.  This contract has been awarded so they’ll need to wait until its being rebid.  This contract may be in place for up to eight (8) years unless there is a compelling reason for to rebid on one of the two (2) year extension intervals.  We always ask our customers well in advance to submit feedback on contractor performance prior to contract extension.

Reasons for rebid include but are not limited to; poor contractor performance, the contract does not adequately fulfill its intended scope, zero usage, does not offer the state a significant savings etc.  Washington State Master Contracts are competitively bid and the law does not allow venders to be added to a contract who did not submit a bid prior to contract award.
Q:  We haven’t had to do Best Buy reporting before so why now?
A:  The Asphalt, Bulk Products contract is a mandatory state contract.  Political Subdivisions and 501c 3 Non Profit Organizations are exempt from Best Buy reporting.  State agencies are required to report Best Buy purchases.  Failure to report these purchases is in violation of statute which makes them potential audit findings.
Q:  That ABRC thing seems complicated so why are we using it?

A:  The pricing of certain categories of asphalt products are “volatile” meaning that they are subject to price frequent price adjustments.  For prior contracts; if vendors were interested in submitting a bid for the Asphalt, Bulk Products contract they had to pad their pricing to protect themselves from losing money, especially during construction season.  Also, the state could find itself paying more for contract items than prevailing market pricing.
Previous contracts required that contractors hold their pricing firm and fixed for at least six (6) months from the time of award.  After six months if an increase was allowed by the state, the contractors had to hold their prices for another six months.  Some vendors quit bidding because of the risk of loss through cost adjustments from the refineries.  It was difficult to submit a competitive bid and build in some price protection in at the same time.
During the winter months pricing remains reasonably low and constant.  When the construction season begins the prices go up and may become extremely volatile due to demand and availability.  The asphalt shortages the state experienced in the middle of the 2008 construction season serves as a reminder of extreme volatility.

The ABRC process is intended to “share the risk” between the state and the contractors and allow for fair and accurate price adjustments of volatile asphalt products.  The ABRC cost adjustment method is an accepted practice used by WSDOT, the industry and other states.
